
 
Next Resolution No. PC 2023-17 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
LOMITA PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, AUGUST 14, 2023  
6:00 P.M. 

 
 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS RESUMED PUBLIC MEETINGS IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS.  PARTICIPATION BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC IS ONLY GUARANTEED VIA 
IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  
  
AS A COURTESY, THE CITY WILL ATTEMPT TO ALSO ALLOW PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
DURING THE MEETING VIA A COMPUTER OR SMART DEVICE USING THE FOLLOWING 
ZOOM LINK:  
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83345188686   
Telephone Option: (669) 900-6833 Meeting ID: 833 4518 8686 

 
Please note that the City cannot, and does not, guarantee that the above Zoom link or dial-in feature 
will work, that any individual commenter’s computer or smart device will operate without issue, or 
that the City’s hosting of the Zoom meeting will work without issue. Members of the public 
acknowledge this and are on notice that public participation is only guaranteed via attendance in 
Council Chambers and that the Zoom option is provided as a courtesy only. Technological issues 
or failure of the Zoom link to be operational for any reason will not result in any pause, recess, or 
cancellation of the meeting.  
 
If you wish to provide public comment during Oral Communications or for a particular agenda item, 
you may either contact the Deputy City Clerk before the meeting, at 310-325-7110 ext. 141, 
complete a speaker card and give it to the Deputy City Clerk before or during the meeting, or if 
participating via Zoom, utilize the “raise hand” function to join the queue to speak when the Chair 
calls the item for discussion. Your name and city of residency is requested, but not required. 
 
 

1. OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

a. Call Meeting to Order 
b. Flag Salute 
c. Roll Call 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Steve Cammarata, Chair 
Michael Graf, Vice-Chair 
Monica Dever, Commissioner  
Jay Mattingly, Commissioner 
Joaquin Santos, Commissioner 
Bob Steinbach, Commissioner 
Brenda Stephens, Commissioner 
 

 

  
 

Lomita City Hall 
Council Chambers 

24300 Narbonne Avenue 
Lomita, CA 90717 

Phone: (310) 325-7110 
Fax: (310) 325-4024 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83345188686
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83345188686
labbott
Inserted Text



Planning Commission Meeting Agenda          August 14, 2023     
 

   Page 2 of 3   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS   
 

Persons wishing to address the Planning Commission on subjects other than those scheduled 
are requested to do so at this time. Please provide your name and address for the record.  In 
order to conduct a timely meeting, a 3-minute time limit per person has been established.  
Government Code Section 54954.2 prohibits the Planning Commission from discussing or 
taking action on a specific item unless it appears on a posted agenda. 
 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  July 10, 2023  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve minutes.  
 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 2023-07, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING LOMITA 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE XI (PLANNING AND ZONING) TO UPDATE THE MIXED-USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT REGULATIONS AND ALLOW MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS 
CONTAINING FOUR OR FEWER UNITS WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN, COMMERCIAL (D-
C) ZONE AND RECOMMEND THE ACTION BE FOUND EXEMPT FROM THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (continued from the July 10, 2023, 
meeting)  

 
APPLICANT: Luis De Moraes, on behalf of Machida Academy, 116 South Catalina Avenue 
Ste 102, Redondo Beach, CA 90277 
PRESENTED BY:   Associate Planner MacMorran 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt a resolution recommending approval of Zoning Text 
Amendment 2023-07 to the City Council, subject to the findings and conditions and the 
finding that the request is exempt from the California Environment Quality Act (CEQA).  
  

 
b. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 326 AT 2155 PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY WITHIN 

THE COMMERCIAL RETAIL (C-R) ZONE AND FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT 
FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
APPLICANT: Vee Vargas, on behalf of Grocery Outlet, 2155 Pacific Coast Highway, 
Lomita, CA 90717  
PRESENTED BY:   Community & Economic Development Director Rindge 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No. 326 
to allow a new grocery store at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway to offer beer, wine, and spirits 
for offsite consumption and to confirm the categorical exemption from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  
  
 

5. SCHEDULED MATTERS  
 

a. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS  
 (Continued from the July 10, 2023, meeting)  
 

Presented by Community & Economic Development Director Rindge 
 



Planning Commission Meeting Agenda  August 14, 2023   

 Page 3 of 3  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Provide specific direction to staff to update the bylaws and 
return to the Planning Commission with a draft resolution accordingly. 

b. COMMUNICATIONS REGARDING CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS

c. UPCOMING DEVELOPMENTS AND BUSINESSES

6. OTHER MATTERS

a. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS

b. PLANNING COMMISSIONER ITEMS

c. COMMISSIONERS TO ATTEND CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

Tuesday, September 5, 2023, City Council meeting, and September 19, 2023, City Council
meeting

7. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular meeting of the Planning Commission is scheduled for Monday, September 11,
2023, at 6:00 p.m.

Written materials distributed to the Planning Commission within 72 hours of the Planning Commission
meeting are available for public inspection via the City’s website and copies are available for public
inspection beginning the next regular business day in the City Clerk’s Office, 24300 Narbonne Avenue,
Lomita.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate
in this meeting, please contact the office of the City Clerk at (310) 325-7110. Notification at least
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements.

Any person may appeal all matters approved or denied by the Planning Commission to City Council
within 30 days of receipt of notice of action by the applicant. Payment of an appeal fee is required. For
further information, contact City Hall at (310) 325-7110.

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing agenda
was posted not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting at the following locations: Lomita City Hall, Lomita
Park, and uploaded to the City of Lomita website at http://www.lomita.com/cityhall/city_agendas/.

Dated Posted:  August 8, 2023

_________________________ 
Linda E. Abbott, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk    

http://www.lomita.com/cityhall/city_agendas/


MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING 

LOMITA PLANNING COMMISSION 
MONDAY, JULY 10, 2023  

1. OPENING CEREMONIES

a. Call Meeting to Order

The regular meeting of the Lomita Planning Commission was called to order by Chair
Cammarata at 6:01 p.m. on Monday, July 10, 2023, in the Council Chambers at Lomita City
Hall, 24300 Narbonne Avenue, Lomita, California.

b. Flag Salute

Vice-Chair Graf led the salute to the flag.

c. Roll Call

PRESENT:  Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair Graf, and Chair
Cammarata

ABSENT:  Commissioners Santos and Steinbach

STAFF PRESENT:  Community and Economic Director Rindge, Associate Planner
MacMorran, Planning Intern Whitney Weisberg, Assistant City Attorney King, and Deputy
City Clerk Abbott

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Chair Cammarata opened Oral Communications.

George Kivett, Lomita resident, stated that the sidewalk on Walnut Avenue near the County
yard is not ADA-compliant and poses a challenge for certain residents. He also stated that at
its last meeting, the Planning Commission held extensive discussion prior to opening the public
hearing, which he felt was inappropriate and could possibly expose the City to legal action.

Rashel Mereness, representing The Slip, expressed support for the murals item to be discussed
this evening, and stated that her business would love to have a mural on their building, perhaps
one depicting the history of Lomita.

There being no further requests to speak, Chair Cammarata closed Oral Communications.

3. CONSENT AGENDA

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  June 12, 2023

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve minutes.

Item 3a



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 10, 2023    

 Page 2 of 6  

Vice-Chair Graf made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, to approve the 
minutes.  

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 

AYES: Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair Graf, and Chair 
Cammarata     

NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Commissioners Santos and Steinbach 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 325 AT 1943 PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY WITHIN
THE COMMERCIAL RETAIL (C-R) ZONE AND FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT
FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (Applicant: Fernanda
Lopez, on behalf of Q’Bole Tacos & Beer, 1943 Pacific Coast Highway, Lomita, CA 90717)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No. 325
to allow the existing restaurant at 1943 Pacific Coast Highway to offer beer and wine for
on-site consumption and to confirm the categorical exemption from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Planning Intern Weisberg presented the staff report per the agenda material.

Brief discussion was held relative to food service while alcohol is being served.

Chair Cammarata invited the applicant forward to speak.

Fernanda Lopez, the applicant, shared information about the restaurant’s history and food,
and stated that allowing for beer and wine service would please their customers and provide
the restaurant with additional revenue.

Chair Cammarata opened the public hearing at 6:21 p.m.

George Kivett, Lomita resident, expressed support for the project.

As there were no further requests from the public to speak on this item, Chair Cammarata
closed the public hearing at 6:23 p.m. and brought the item back to the Commission for
additional discussion or a motion.

Assistant City Attorney King clarified that ABC requires that an assortment of food must be
available for purchase while alcohol is being served.

Vice-Chair Graf made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Dever, to a adopt a resolution
approving Conditional Use Permit No. 325 to allow the existing restaurant at 1943 Pacific
Coast Highway to offer beer and wine for on-site consumption and to confirm the categorical
exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair Graf, and Chair 
Cammarata 

NOES:   None 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 10, 2023    

 Page 3 of 6  

ABSENT: Commissioners Santos and Steinbach 

b. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 2023-07,
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING LOMITA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE XI (PLANNING AND
ZONING) TO UPDATE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT REGULATIONS AND
ALLOW MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS CONTAINING FOUR OR FEWER UNITS
WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN, COMMERCIAL (D-C) ZONE AND RECOMMEND THE
ACTION BE FOUND EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
ACT (Applicant: Luis De Moraes, on behalf of Machida Academy, 116 South Catalina
Avenue, Suite 102, Redondo Beach, CA 90277)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt a resolution recommending the City Council adopt
Zoning Text Amendment 2023-07 and find the request exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Associate Planner MacMorran presented the staff report per the agenda material. She
clarified that this amendment would only apply to any property in the D-C Zone and within
the Mixed-Use Overlay. Many mixed-use properties in the D-C Zone would be considered
nonconforming by today's standards (post-2006). She shared a comparison of existing
development standards and those proposed in the zone text amendment.

Brief discussion was held relative to onsite parking requirements for residential units (this
building has no onsite parking).

Chair Cammarata invited the applicant forward to speak to the project. Luis De Moraes,
project architect, stated that this project would add to the revitalization of Narbonne Avenue,
and that it could be a pioneer project, especially for developers with limited resources. He
added that bike racks could be put in the back of the building to offset the demand for
parking.

Chinzo Machida, the property owner, stated his desire to continue his father’s martial arts
legacy in Lomita. He also spoke of the difficulties he has endured trying to lease the
remaining office space.

Chair Cammarata opened the public hearing at 6:59 p.m.

George Kivett, Lomita resident, expressed support for the amendment but suggested
looking into allowing all properties under 10,000 square feet, within the mixed-use overlay
(not just in the D-C Zone) to be mixed-use.

As there were no further requests from the public to speak on this item, Chair Cammarata
closed the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. and brought the item back for further discussion or a
motion.

The Commission expressed concerns with increasing mixed-use development on
properties without onsite parking.

Chair Cammarata made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, to continue this
item to the August 14, 2023, meeting so that all seven commissioners can participate in the
discussion.

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote:



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes            July 10, 2023     
 

   Page 4 of 6   

AYES: Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair  Graf, and Chair 
Cammarata     

NOES:      None  
ABSENT: Commissioners Santos and Steinbach   
 
 

c. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 2023-08, A 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LOMITA 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT     
2023-08 AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF LOMITA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE XI 
(PLANNING AND ZONING) TO REGULATE MURALS CITYWIDE AND FINDING THE 
ACTION TO BE EXEMPT FROM THE  CALIFORNIA  ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT   
(Applicant: City of Lomita)   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt a resolution recommending the City Council adopt 
Zoning Text Amendment 2023-08 and find the request exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Director Rindge presented the staff report per the agenda material.   
 
Chair Cammarata opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m.  
 
George Kivett expressed concerns that murals will not be maintained and will attract graffiti. 
He suggested that all murals be family-friendly in order to receive approval. 
 
As there were no further requests from the public to speak on this item, Chair Cammarata 
closed the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. and brought the item back to the Commission for a 
motion.  
 
Commissioner Stephens made a motion, seconded by Vice-Chair Graf, to adopt a 
resolution recommending the City Council adopt Zoning Text Amendment 2023-08 and find 
the request exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
MOTION CARRIED by the following vote:  
 
AYES: Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair  Graf, and Chair 

Cammarata     
NOES:      None  
ABSENT: Commissioners Santos and Steinbach   
 
 

5. SCHEDULED MATTERS  
 

a. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Provide specific direction to staff to update the bylaws and 
return to Planning Commission with a draft resolution accordingly. 
 
Director Rindge presented the staff report per the agenda material.   
 
Chair Cammarata made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, to continue this 
item to the August 14, 2023, meeting so that all seven commissioners can participate in 
discussion.    
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 10, 2023    

 Page 5 of 6  

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 

AYES: Commissioners Dever, Mattingly, Stephens, Vice-Chair Graf, and Chair 
Cammarata     

NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Commissioners Santos and Steinbach 

b. COMMUNICATIONS REGARDING CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS

Director Rindge had nothing to report.

6. OTHER MATTERS

a. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS

Director Rindge congratulated Planning Intern Weisberg on a job well done on her first staff
report this evening. She announced the next General Plan Advisory Committee Workshop
is to take place Thursday, July 13, at 5:30 p.m. She also provided brief updates on Grocery
Outlet, The Slip, and Cream Pan.

b. PLANNING COMMISSIONER ITEMS

Vice-Chair Graf commented on a business grand opening he recently saw advertised on
social media. It is located in a suite of a building whose owners were to correct certain
non-permitted work in order to obtain Planning Commission approval at the June 12, 2023,
meeting. He stated that the photos on the post showed that non-permitted work had clearly
not been corrected, and as result, the business should not be allowed to open and operate.

Director Rindge stated that staff will investigate this matter tomorrow morning.

There was brief discussion relative to comments during Oral Communications. Assistant
City Attorney King stated that Mr. Kivett felt that the public hearing had not been opened
soon enough and spoke of the importance of the Commission keeping an open mind during
discussion of items. He added that the Commission must always avoid even the
appearance of forming an opinion before all testimony has been heard.

Mr. Kivett wished to comment on this item, but Chair Cammarata denied his request as
public comment is not heard under Planning Commissioner Items.

7. COMMISSIONERS TO ATTEND CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

The Tuesday, August 1, 2023, City Council meeting will likely be cancelled due to National
Night Out; Planning Commission representation at the Tuesday, August 15, 2023, City Council
meeting is to be determined.

8. ADJOURNMENT

As there was no further business to discuss, Chair Cammarata adjourned the meeting at
7:38 p.m.



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes            July 10, 2023     
 

   Page 6 of 6   

 
_________________________ 
Linda E. Abbott, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk     



1 

TO: Planning Commission

FROM: Laura MacMorran, Associate Planner

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Zoning Text Amendment No. 2023-07, an Ordinance Amending
Lomita Municipal Code Title XI (Planning and Zoning) to Update the
Mixed-Use Overlay District Regulations and Allow Mixed-Use
Developments Containing Four or Fewer Units Within the Downtown,
Commercial (D-C) Zone and Recommend the Action be Found
Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (continued 
from the July 10, 2023, meeting)   

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution recommending approval of Zoning Text Amendment 2023-07 to the
City Council, subject to the findings and conditions and the finding that the request is
exempt from the California Environment Quality Act (CEQA).

BACKGROUND

On July 10, 2023, the Planning Commission considered the proposed zone text
amendment to provide incentives and concessions in exchange for deed-restricted
affordable housing for mixed-use developments converting 4 or fewer commercial units
to residential use on parcels within the Downtown, Commercial (D-C) Zone, within the
Mixed-Use Overlay (MUO), in accordance with Housing Element Program 7 (See
Attachment 4). The potential impact that parking concessions might have raised
concerns. Planning Commission voted to continue the hearing to the next meeting with
no further direction.  

After the July 10th Planning Commission meeting, the applicant submitted a written

request (Attachment 2) to revise the proposed text amendment so that it would apply only
to commercial space converted to residential use.  The Applicant reasons that a
commercial use occupying the existing space would generate parking demands, and
therefore, it would not make a significant difference to allow residential units to be
converted from already-built commercial space. 

Item No. PH 4a

CITY OF LOMITA 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT



2 

ANALYSIS 

Staff does not object to the Applicant’s zone text amendment. The following table uses
the applicant’s existing second-floor at 1,500 ft2 to illustrate the differences in parking
requirements generated by commercial versus residential use. 

Commercial v. Residential Parking Requirements Example 

Use Parking Ratio Quantity Parking Spaces Required 

Commercial:
Office/Personal
Service/Retail 

1 space/300 ft2

(Sec. 11-1.66.03(C))  
1,500 ft2 5 spaces 

Residential:
Studio + Guest 

1 space/unit 
+.25 spaces/unit

(Sec. 11-1.58.06(f))  

3 units,
each at
500 ft2 

3 spaces 
+ 1 space
4 spaces 

Per the Lomita Municipal Code parking requirements, commercial use require more
parking spaces than three studio apartments.

Staff continues to recommend the proposed July 10th zone text amendment because it:
1) provides a new development tool for small housing projects that is similar to the

State’s Density Bonus law for five-for-more-unit housing projects;
2) applies to all properties in the MUO-DC-Zone;
3) encourages existing properties to reinvest;
4) preserves the scale and character of the Downtown; and
5) achieves Housing Element Program 7’s objective to “improve development

regulations intended to incentivize affordable and mixed-income housing through
regulatory induces, such as incentive zoning” as recently adopted by City Council.

At the July 25, 2023 public workshop for the City’s General Plan Update, attended by
approximately 50 Lomita residents and/or workers, the topic was “Land Use & Design”.
At this workshop, the public was invited to place stickers on their own map denoting where
in the city they’d like to see certain land uses change or continue.  Unprompted, a large
handful attendees located across the room indicated that they’d like to see more
residential-over-commercial vertical mixed-use in the Downtown Lomita area.

Changing, reducing, or even bartering development standards for a public good, such as
affordable housing, is a paradigm shift.  Perceptions of commercial development
standards, particularly parking requirements, have gradually adjusted. It has been seen
how inflexible requirements can stifle economic development, and conversely how
loosening these requirements supports economic development.  For example, Lomita
allows D-C Zone commercial uses within 500 feet of a municipal parking lot to reduce
onsite parking supply (LMC Sec. 11-1.49.06(D)). Over the last few years, several



3 

businesses in the D-C Zone have benefited from this provision, and thereby the City and
its existing residents have, too.

Like commercial uses, sometimes residential requirements can prevent new
development.  The July 10th proposed text amendment balances a multitude of competing
demands and draws from Lomita’s existing standards and State law to craft provisions
that would facilitate affordable housing and mixed-income housing development.

CEQA

The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. Section 15061(b)(3) states that CEQA
applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment. The proposed text amendment will not have a significant effect on the
environment because the proposed amendment would provide for new standards
consistent with State Law and does not propose any physical construction.

OPTIONS

1. Recommend approval to the City Council as proposed by the applicant.
2. Recommend approval to the City Council as recommended by staff.
3. Recommend approval to the City Council with amendments.
4. Provide staff with further direction.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution and Exhibit A Draft Ordinance (continued from July 10th meeting)
2. Applicant’s Written Request to Revise the Zone Text Amendment
3. July 10th Planning Commission Staff Report
4. Housing Element Excerpt: Program 7 Incentives and Regulations

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Laura MacMorran Brianna Rindge, AICP
Associate Planner Community & Economic Development Director



ATTACHMENT 1

PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. PC 2023-XX

ZONE TEXT AMEDNMENT 2023-007
DOWNTOWN, COMMERCIAL ZONE

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
LOMITA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF ZONING TEXT
AMENDMENT 2023-07 AMENDING LOMITA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE XI
(PLANNING AND ZONING), CHAPTER 1 (ZONING), ARTICLE 58 SECTION
11-1.58.06 (MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT), AND FINDING THE
ACTION TO BE EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LOMITA DOES HEREBY FIND, ORDER
AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals

A. This proposed code amendment has been assessed in accordance with Section
15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. Section 15061(b)(3) states that CEQA applies
only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment. The proposed text amendment will not have a significant effect on the
environment because the proposed amendments would provide for new standards
consistent with State Law and do not propose any physical construction.

B. On July 10, 2023, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on
Zone Text Amendment No. 2023-07 (initiated by Messrs. Luis De Moraes and Chinzo
Machida), where public testimony was accepted on the item and after deliberations
the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council approve the Zoning
Text Amendment., in accordance with Lomita Municipal Code sections 11-1.70.04
and 11-1.70.05(C).

C. After review and consideration of all evidence and testimony presented in
connection with this hearing, the Planning Commission recommends that the City
Council approves the Zoning Text Amendment.

Section 2. In accordance with Municipal Code section 11-1.70.05, the Planning
Commission finds that the proposed Zone Text Amendment is consistent with the
General Plan as described in Exhibit A.

Section 3. Based on the foregoing, the Planning Commission of the City of Lomita hereby
recommends City Council approve the amendments to the Lomita Municipal Code shown
in the draft Ordinance (Exhibit A).

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lomita on this 10th

day of July, 2023, by the following vote:



Resolution No. 2023- 
Page 2 

 

AYES: Commissioners:    
NOES:  Commissioners:    
ABSENT:   Commissioners:    

     
 
       Steven Cammarata, Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                          
       Brianna Rindge, AICP 
   Community and Economic Development Director 
 
Any action to challenge the final decision of the City made as a result of the public hearing 
on this application must be filed within the time limits set forth in Code of Civil Procedure 
Section 1094.6. 
 



Exhibit A 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOMITA 
AMENDING LOMITA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE XI (PLANNING AND 
ZONING), CHAPTER 1 (ZONING), REVISING THE CITY’S 
REGULATIONS FOR MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT TO UPDATE 
STANDARDS; TO ALLOW MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS CONTAINING 
FOUR OR FEWER UNITS WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL (D-
C) ZONE; TO DEFINE A TERM AND A DETERMINATION THAT THE 
PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)  
  
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOMITA HEREBY ORDAINS AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Recitals.  
 

A. An existing ordinance addressing mixed-use developments is codified in Title XI 
of the Lomita Municipal Code. 
 

B. The City desires to amend Title XI of the Lomita Municipal Code to amend its 
mixed-use standards of development regulations as necessary to allow for four or 
fewer units on properties with less than 10,000 square feet, and to establish 
affordable housing incentives in the Downtown-Commercial Zone. 

 
C. On July 10, 2023, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on 

Zone Text Amendment No. 2023-06 where public testimony was accepted on the 
item and recommended City Council ___________.   

 
F. On _________ 2023  and _______  2023, City Council held a duly noticed public 

hearing to consider the proposed text amendment regarding Accessory Dwelling 
Units. 

 
Section 2. General Plan 

This Ordinance’s amendments to Title XI of the Lomita Municipal Code are consistent 
with, and in furtherance of, the City’s adopted General Plan as they effectuate the 
following Policies of the General Plan: 
 

A. Housing Element Policy 2.4 which is to promote and encourage innovation and 
creativity in housing development through regulations that increase transparency 
and flexibility in the development approval process. 
 

B. Housing Element Program 7 which requires the City to evaluate a range of 
incentive-based and regulatory approaches to facilitate the development of 
housing for lower-income households.  One specific objective is to “Improve 
development regulations intended to incentivize affordable and mixed-income 



Ordinance No.  
Page 2 of 8 

 

 
 

housing development through regulatory inducements such as incentive zoning 
paired with objective development standards, or process incentives such as 
technical assistance in exchange for affordable housing no later than fall 2023.”   

Section 3. Environmental Review   

The City Council finds and determines that the adoption of this Ordinance regarding 
Mixed Use Overlay standards of development in the Downtown Commercial Zone is 
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. Section 15061(b)(3) states that CEQA applies only 
to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. The 
Ordinance will not have a significant effect on the environment because only new 
standards consistent with the existing municipal code and State Law are provided and 
does not propose any physical construction.  
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOMITA HEREBY ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 4.  Zoning Amendments 
 
Based on the foregoing, the City Council hereby approves the following amendments to 
the Lomita Municipal Code: 
 

A. Section 11-1.15.03(C) of Title XI of the Lomita Municipal Code is amended to read 
as follows: 
 
“Clear vision triangle shall mean an unoccupied triangular area located at the 
intersection of two vehicular passageways composed of either two streets, a street 
and an alley, a street and a driveway, or a driveway and a sidewalk. Two 
perpendicular triangle legs are measured from the corner intersection of property 
lines for a minimum distance of 10 feet each way along the lot line(s), or driveway 
based on the situation. The third leg of the triangle is a line joining the ends of the 
other two legs. Such triangular area shall remain clear of obstructions between 
three and 10 feet above grade.” 
 

B. Section 11-1.58.06 of Title XI of the Lomita Municipal Code is amended to read as 
follows: 

 
“Sec. 11-1.58.06. Standards of development 

Premises within the mixed-use overlay zone shall be subject to the development 
standards prescribed in this section and those standards contained in part 6, "General 
Standards of Development."  

Projects that are not considered mixed-use are subject to the underlying zoning 
regulations of its applicable zone.  

(A) Mixed-Use Projects with Five (5) or More Residential Units 



Ordinance No.  
Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 

(1) Minimum lot size. The minimum lot size for mixed-use developments shall 
be ten thousand (10,000) square feet.  

(2) Yards. and sightlines. 

(a) Front yard. None required.  

(b) Side yard. None required, except that a building exceeding sixteen 
(16) feet in height on a lot or parcel in the mixed-use overlay zone 
which has a side lot line adjoining property in a residential zone 
shall have a side setback not less than ten (10) feet.  

(c) Rear yard. None required, except that a building exceeding sixteen 
(16) feet in height on a lot or parcel in the mixed-use overlay zone 
which has a rear lot line adjoining property in a residential zone 
shall have a rear setback not less than ten (10) feet.  

(d) Corner lots. To ensure adequate visibility for vehicles turning a 
corner, a clear vision triangle shall be created with ten (10) foot-
long perpendicular legs.  

(3) Minimum unit size. 
Studio — Five hundred (500) square feet;  

One bedroom —Seven hundred (700) square feet;  

Two (2) bedrooms — Nine hundred (900) square feet;  

Additional bedrooms — Two hundred (200) additional square feet per 
bedroom.  

(4) Building height. No lot or parcel of land in the mixed-use overlay zone 
shall have a building or structure in excess of thirty-five (35) feet.  

(5) Percentage of nonresidential uses. Percentage of nonresidential uses for 
mixed-use projects shall be a minimum of thirty (30) percent. Mixed-use 
projects shall be consistent with the definition in Section 11-1.58.02. A 
deviation from this requirement may be granted subject to conditional use 
permit. 

(6) Off-street parking and loading. For new mixed-use development, the 
commercial component shall have off-street parking and loading pursuant 
to Article 66, "Off-Street Parking, Storage and Loading." The parking ratio 
for the residential component of mixed-use projects is as follows. 
Residential parking may be met by covered or open parking spaces.   

Units between five hundred (500) and seven hundred (700) square feet 
— One space;  

Units seven hundred one (701) square feet and greater — Two (2) 
spaces;  

Guest parking — .25 spaces per unit.  



Ordinance No.  
Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 

(7) Ground floor building coverage. For visual interest at the pedestrian level, 
at least fifty (50) percent of the total ground floor building frontage of any 
new or reconstructed building facing the public street shall have the 
following: windows with clear glass, recessed entries, residential stoops, 
or recesses for outdoor dining areas. To calculate the total ground-floor 
frontage, use the length of the building frontage along the pedestrian 
realm times the first-floor height from floor to ceiling.  

(8) Open space. 
 (a) Recreation and open space shall be provided for each mixed-use 

project. The required minimum amount of open space for a mixed-
use project is two hundred (200) square feet per unit. The minimum 
open space may be met through a combination of common and 
private open space. All required open space shall be useable.  

(b) A minimum of twenty-five (25) percent of all open space shall be 
planted area including trees, shrubs and gardens. Planters and 
planting containers may be counted toward this requirement.  

(c) Common open space shall require a minimum width of ten (10) feet 
and be a minimum of two hundred (200) square feet in area.  

(d) Projects that propose a public open space component as part of a 
mixed-use project may request a waiver from the open space 
requirement pursuant to Article 70 (Zoning Ordinance 
Administration).  

(9) Utilities. All new utilities shall be placed underground.  

(10) Satellite antennas. Satellite antennas when fully screened from the public 
right-of-way may be ground or roof mounted but may not exceed the 
height limit of buildings or structures in this zone.  

(11) Walls.  

(a)  Each lot or parcel of land in the mixed-use overlay zone which has 
a side or rear lot line adjoining property in a residential zone shall 
have a solid masonry wall, not less than six (6) feet in height, 
established along said side and rear lot lines except as otherwise 
provided in section 11-1.66.08(1) and except where such adjoining 
property is used in conjunction with such commercial lot.  

(b)  No wall shall be required if the building is located on a property line 
adjoining residential zones. However, windows shall not be located 
on the side of a commercial building which adjoins residential 
zones.  

(B) Mixed-Use Projects with Four (4) or Less Residential Units in the Downtown, 
Commercial (D-C) Zone 

 



Ordinance No.  
Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 

(1) Definitions. For purposes of this subsection, the following definitions will 
apply: 

(a) Concession shall mean a reduction in development standards or a 
modification of zoning code requirements or architectural design 
requirements that exceed the minimum building standards 
approved by the California Building Standards Commission. 

(b) Incentive shall mean a modification to development standards, of 
zoning code requirements or architectural design requirements. 

(2)  Development standards. 

(a) No minimum lot size.  
(b) Yards and sightlines. 

(i) Front yard. None required.  

(ii) Side yard. None required, except that a building exceeding 
sixteen (16) feet in height on a lot or parcel in the mixed-use 
overlay zone which has a side lot line adjoining property in a 
residential zone shall have a side setback not less than ten (10) 
feet.  

(iii) Rear yard. None required, except that a building exceeding 
sixteen (16) feet in height on a lot or parcel in the mixed-use 
overlay zone which has a rear lot line adjoining property in a 
residential zone shall have a rear setback not less than ten (10) 
feet.  

(iv) Corner lots. To ensure adequate visibility for vehicles turning a 
corner, a clear vision triangle shall be created with ten (10) foot-
long perpendicular legs.  

(v) Exemption. Existing buildings converting existing floor area or 
up to one-hundred fifty (150) square feet for ingress/egress 
shall be exempt from setback and sightline requirements.  

(3) Further development standards. 

(a) Maximum average unit size (no minimum size greater than CA 
Health & Safety Code Section 17958.1). 

Studio — Five hundred fifty (550) square feet;  

One (1) bedroom— Eight hundred (800) square feet;  

Two (2) bedrooms— One thousand (1,000) square feet;  

Additional bedrooms — Two hundred (200) additional square feet 
per bedroom.  

(b) Building height. No lot or parcel of land in the mixed-use overlay 
zone shall have a building or structure in excess of thirty-five (35) 



Ordinance No.  
Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 

feet.  Existing buildings converting existing space shall be exempt 
from height requirements.  

(c) Percentage of nonresidential uses. Percentage of nonresidential 
uses shall be a minimum of thirty (30) percent. Mixed-use projects 
shall be consistent with the definition in Section 11-1.58.02. A 
deviation from this requirement may be granted subject to 
conditional use permit. 

(d) Off-street parking and loading. For new mixed-use development, 
the commercial component shall have off-street parking and 
loading pursuant to Article 66, "Off-Street Parking, Storage and 
Loading." The parking ratio for the residential component of mixed-
use projects is as follows. Parking may be met by covered or open 
parking spaces, but not enclosed parking spaces.  

Units between five hundred (500) and seven hundred (700) 
square feet — One space;  

Units seven hundred one (701) square feet and greater — Two 
(2) spaces;  

Guest parking — One (1) space total per project.  

(e) Building ground floor  

(i) Fronting Narbonne Avenue or Lomita Boulevard, only 
nonresidential uses may be located on the ground floor, with 
the exception of ingress/egress for units located above the 
ground floor. Commercial ground floor area shall not be 
converted to residential ground floor area, with the exception of 
ingress/egress for units located above the ground floor. 

(ii) Building coverage. For visual interest at the pedestrian level, at 
least fifty (50) percent of the total ground floor building frontage 
of any new or reconstructed building facing the public street 
shall have the following: windows with clear glass, recessed 
entries, residential stoops, or recesses for outdoor dining areas. 
To calculate the total ground-floor frontage, use the length of 
the building frontage along the pedestrian realm times the first-
floor height from floor to ceiling.  

(f) Open space. 
(i) Recreation and open space shall be provided for each mixed-

use project. The required minimum amount of open space for a 
mixed-use project is two hundred (200) square feet per unit. 
The minimum open space may be met through a combination 
of common and private open space. All required open space 
shall be useable.  

(ii) A minimum of twenty-five (25) percent of all open space shall 
be planted area including trees, shrubs and gardens. Planters 



Ordinance No.  
Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 

and planting containers may be counted toward this 
requirement.  

(iii) Common open space shall require a minimum width of ten (10) 
feet and be a minimum of two hundred (200) square feet in area.  

(g) Utilities. All new utilities shall be placed underground.  

(h) Satellite antennas. Satellite antennas when fully screened from the 
public right-of-way may be ground or roof mounted but may not 
exceed the height limit of buildings or structures in this zone. 

(i) Walls. 

(i) Each lot or parcel of land in the mixed-use overlay zone which 
has a side or rear lot line adjoining property in a residential zone 
shall have a solid masonry wall, not less than six (6) feet in 
height, established along said side and rear lot lines except as 
otherwise provided in section 11-1.66.08(1) and except where 
such adjoining property is used in conjunction with such 
commercial lot.  

(ii) No wall shall be required if the building is located on a property 
line adjoining residential zones. However, windows shall not be 
located on the side of a commercial building which adjoins 
residential zones.  

(4) Affordable residential unit(s). 

(a) This subsection applies to any proposed mixed-use project with 
four (4) or less residential units, when an applicant proposes to 
reserve a portion of the units for lower income households.  In 
exchange for reserving affordable residential units, the applicant 
shall be eligible to select incentives or concessions to relieve the 
project of either two or three requirements listed within subsection 
(B)(3), as follows: 

(i) Two (2) incentives or concessions for projects that include one 
(1) unit for a lower income household. 

(ii) Three (3) incentives or concessions for projects that include at 
least two (2) units for lower income households, or one unit for 
a very low income household. 

(b) To be eligible for the incentives or concessions, the unit(s) shall be 
rented at an affordable rent for lower income or very low income as 
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 50053(b), and shall only 
be rented to either lower income households, as defined in 
California Health and Safety Code Section 50105, or very low 
income households, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 
50079.5, for a minimum of thirty (30) years. Prior to the issuance of 
a building permit for any unit at the property or mixed-use project, 
the owner of the property shall execute and record on the property 



Ordinance No.  
Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 

a deed restriction, in a form approved by the director and the city 
attorney, establishing legal restrictions consistent with this section.   

(c) The affordable unit(s) shall be comparable, both in size and 
quantity of bedrooms and bathrooms, to the largest market rate 
unit(s). 

 
(d) For proposed projects that meet the eligibility requirements set 

forth in this subsection, the director of community development 
shall ministerially grant the incentives or concessions as part of 
the site plan review process.” 

 
Section 5. Severability  
 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
ordinance or any part hereof is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance or any part thereof.  The City 
Council of the City of Lomita hereby declares that it would have passed each section, 
subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective of the 
fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses or phrases be declared invalid. 

Section 6 . Effective Date.  

This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of its passage; and prior to 
fifteen (15) days after its passage, the City Clerk shall cause a copy of this ordinance to 
be published in accordance with the provisions of the law. The City Clerk shall certify the 
adoption of this ordinance.   

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this _____ day of _________, 2023. 
 

          
    ________________________________ 

       Barry Waite, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kathleen Horn Gregory, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

 

 

____________________________ 

Trevor Rusin, City Attorney 
 



INTERACTIVE ARCHITECTURE * INTERIOR DESIGN * COMPUTER AIDED DRAFTING AND DESIGN 
South Bay Office:  3635 Newton Street – Suite B  Torrance, California 90505  Tel: 310/379-9716   

Email: luis@envirotechno.com  website: www.envirotechno.com 

Date: 07-17-2023 

To: Brianna Rindge, AICP - Director of Community & Economic Development 
Laura McMoran – Associate Planner 
Members of the Planning Commission 
City of Lomita, 24300 Narbonne Ave, Lomita, CA 90717 

Regarding: 24333 Lomita Boulevard – Upper Level Space Conversion  
       July 10 Public Hearing Comments 

Dear Ms. McMorran, Ms. Rindge and Members of the Planning Commission, 

Thank you for considering our application related to the conversion of the existing upstairs commercial space 
to residential use. 

While we appreciate the opportunity to be included in the proposed changes for the Zone Text Amendment 
changes related to the Mixed-Use parameters in your Municipal Code, we would like to identify some specific 
considerations which should be reviewed for unique cases such as the few remaining existing commercial 
buildings on Narbonne. 

The biggest resistance was the concern about the parking demand increase once converting the partial 
commercial spaces to residential use. 
Per your current Municipal Code parking requirements, commercial uses as “professional offices” require (1) 
space for each three hundred sq.ft. of area. 

In our case, we are proposing to convert approximately 1,500 sq.ft. of upstairs space to three individual, 
affordable residential studio units.  

We believe that our parking needs would be at best (3) compared to the (5) required, as it exists now in the 
current code, for commercial use. 
Additionally, we are located within half a mile of public transportation; and as discussed during our hearing, we 
can provide bicycle racks to not only reduce the demand for automobile parking, but also to encourage “green 
transportation. 

Per our experience with other affordable housing projects, state law has eliminated the need to provide parking 
all together when providing affordable units if within half of mile of public transportation. 

Another important consideration regarding the general Zone Text Amendment changes, would be to validate 
the difference for parking demands between existing buildings versus new development. 
A brand-new development affords the opportunity to include creative incorporation and accommodation of the 
standard required parking; or other alternative parking measures such as in-lieu fees, remote parking within 
five hundred sq.ft., shared parking with other commercial uses at off peak hours.  
There are many options for new developers to consider which are commonly used in other new developments 
throughout other cities and I believe yours as well. 

Existing buildings converted to Mixed Use subject to small additions for architectural and code compliant 
corrections; and remodels - do not afford the flexibility of extensive re-build and should be classified differently. 

In our case, the “commercial rental area upstairs,” has had offers for lease for a period of 1.5 years but have 
been considered undesirable offers by the owner. 

Attachment  2



Comments to Zone Text Amendment – Public Hearing 07-10-2023 
07/17/23  

Page 2 of 2

 
 
The karate studio is a family business from generation to generation and the requirement for quality tenants is 
of utmost importance to preserve the integrity of the business. It offers a number of classes for children and 
other institutions, which expects safety, classy and respectable environments. 
 
Our suggestion includes a General Zone Text Amendment to allow Mixed-Use for properties under 10,000 
sq.ft.; preserve the standard parking requirements for new developments and provide exceptions for existing 
buildings (which there are only a few left). By doing so, the impact to Narbonne and the neighbors would be 
minimum or none. 
 
In general, we believe this is also a positive move to help the city of Lomita to increase affordable housing and 
assist in compliance with the required number of affordable housings per the latest requirements of the state. 
 
We thank you in advance for your consideration and will be ready to discuss our thoughts further at the next 
public hearing. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Luis de Moraes AIA-ASID-LEED AP BD+C 
License No. C32440 - Principal 
(On Behalf of Chinzo Machida – Machida Karate property Owner) 
 



1 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Laura MacMorran, Associate Planner 

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Consideration of Zoning Text Amendment  
No. 2023-07, an Ordinance Amending Lomita Municipal Code Title 
XI (Planning and Zoning) to Update the Mixed-Use Overlay District 
Regulations and Allow Mixed-Use Developments Containing Four or 
Fewer Units Within the Downtown, Commercial (D-C) Zone and 
Recommend the Action be Found Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution recommending approval of Zoning Text Amendment 2023-07 to the 
City Council, subject to the findings and conditions and the finding that the request is 
exempt from the California Environment Quality Act (CEQA). 

BACKGROUND 

Luis De Moraes and Chinzo Machida have applied to remove the minimum lot size 
requirement for projects containing four or fewer residential units in the Downtown, 
Commercial Zone and to grant development standard concessions and incentives for 
creating deed-restricted affordable housing.  

In 2006, the Mixed-Use Overlay (MUO) District was adopted. Only projects with a 
minimum of 10,000 ft2 are eligible for mixed-uses.  The size requirement was to promote 
lot consolidation, which would lead to redevelopment, more efficient land use based on 
the density calculation methodology, and more optimal use of the land given the 
development standards. 

Since the MUO District was adopted, three mixed-use projects in the Commercial General 
(C-G) Zone and one mixed-use project in the Downtown Commercial (D-C) Zone have 
been developed.  In addition, there are at least five nonconforming mixed-use properties 
in the D-C Zone and several in C-G Zone that were developed prior to the City’s 
incorporation. 

Item No. PH 4b 

CITY OF LOMITA 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT

Attachment 3

labbott
Inserted Text



 2 

Except for the Rolling Ranchos neighborhood, Lomita’s land subdivision is very irregular.  
In the commercial zones, property sizes range from 3,000 ft2 to nearly 30,000 ft2.  The   
D-C Zone, in particular, contains a variety of lot sizes, and a variety of building styles, 
ages, and heights. This eclectic mix contributes to Lomita’s character and small-town 
identity. As many properties do not meet the current lot size requirement, a small lot is 
not an extraordinary and unusual condition. As such, the findings for a variance cannot 
be supported, making a text amendment necessary. 
 
In order for two small properties to combine and create a 10,000-square-foot or more 
property, there are many variables that factor into the equation. These variables are 
beyond the City’s and a developer’s control and. For example, not a single mixed-use 
project has combined lots from different sellers. 
 
In conjunction with the applicants’ amendment, some minor changes are proposed to 
align the Lomita Municipal Code with State laws, update some standards, and clean up 
a procedural inconsistency. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed amendment is in response to limitations on lots less than 10,000 ft2, an 
increased demand for housing, preservation of the character and scale of the Downtown 
Commercial Zone, the Sixth Cycle Housing Element commitments, and the need for other 
minor revisions.   
 
1) D-C ZONE MIXED-USE PROJECTS WITH FOUR OR FEWER RESIDENTIAL UNITS 
See Section 11-1.58.04(B) of the draft ordinance (Attachment 1 Exhibit A)   
  
The proposed amendment offers an additional path for MUO-D-C-Zone properties.  
Neither the land use nor the zoning will change. Mixed-use is already permitted, but the 
minimum lot size standard excludes some properties from creating residential units.   
 
For projects with four or fewer residential units, there would no minimum lot size. Four 
units was determined to be the appropriate number because as the Code is written these 
projects cannot be developed, they align the Housing Element’s mixed-use density of 20 
units to 30 units an acre, and projects of this size do not have a corresponding State 
development tool.  Projects with five or more units are eligible for the State’s Density 
Bonus Law; therefore, a project would opt for those more generous provisions. 
 
In the case of co-applicant Mr. Machida, the 6,900-square-foot property that he owns 
(24333 Narbonne Avenue) is located between a city-owned parking lot and The Lomita 
Feed Store.  The likelihood that 24333 Narbonne Avenue will merge with one of these 
properties is slim and therefore cannot develop residential units a mixed-use property 
even though its consistent with the land use. 
 
The proposed mixed-use standards mostly replicate the existing standards; but there are 
a few differences to preserve Lomita’s downtown character. 



 3 

Development requirements typically set a minimum unit size, and the State requires at 
least 150 ft2. Lomita’s existing mixed-use unit size standards require a studio unit to be 
at least 500 ft2, a one-bedroom to be at least 700 ft2, a two-bedroom to be at least 900 
ft2, and additional bedrooms to be at least 200 ft2.  However, the Code does not set a 
maximum unit size.  Without a cap, a residential unit can be as big as the developer 
wants, and the floor area occupied by residential uses has the potential to shrink the floor 
area available for nonresidential (commercial) uses.     
 
Staff recommends implementing an average maximum unit size standard for projects with 
four or fewer units.  These average unit sizes contain ample room. Studios must average 
550 ft2t or less; one-bedrooms must average 800 ft2 or less, two-bedrooms must average 
1,000 ft2 or less, and additional bedrooms can add up to 200 ft2.  In general, smaller units 
tend to cost less, and tend to be occupied by only one household, which means that the 
unit occupant’s needs and impacts correspond to the development standards.  In addition, 
by capping the residential unit sizes, there is a higher probability that the desired 30% 
commercial space to 70% residential space ratio will be met. 
 
Another difference between the four-or-fewer-unit standards and the five-or-more-unit 
standards is a requirement that the ground floor space fronting Narbonne Avenue and 
Lomita Boulevard be occupied with commercial/nonresidential uses.  Though mixed-use 
typically implies street-fronting commercial, it is not explicitly stated. 
 
2) AFFORDABLE UNIT AND INCENTIVES AND CONCESSIONS 
See Section 11-1.58.04(B)(3) of the draft ordinance (Attachment 1 Exhibit A)   
 
Staff analyzed the majority of the Mixed-Use Overlay properties in the D-C Zone. Those 
properties that contain 60-year-old plus buildings would find it challenging or impossible 
to meet all the development standards.  Modifying or eliminating development standards 
to create affordable housing is recognized nationwide as a cost-effective method to 
develop affordable housing.  
 
The proposed Affordable Unit provision is modeled after the State’s Density Bonus Law 
(CA Gov. Code 65915), which allows a developer to receive a certain number of 
incentives to or concessions from a local jurisdiction’s development standards in 
exchange for creating deed-restricted affordable housing.   
 
Unlike the State’s program, bonus units are not awarded.  Staff recommends adhering to 
the densities approved in the HE. This recommendation recognizes that bonus units place 
an unforeseen demand on off-site facilities and infrastructure. 
 
3) OTHER AMENDMENTS FOR CONSISTENCY 
See Section 11-1.58.04(A)(1), and Section 11-1.15.13(C) of the draft ordinance 
(Attachment 1 Exhibit A)   
 
The draft amendment proposes a) to revise a subjective standard, and b) to replace one 
entitlement process with a more appropriate entitlement. 



 4 

a) Lomita’s Mixed-use Standards of Development contains a corner lot provision to 
ensure that vehicles have adequate visibility at intersections. For example, 24516 
Narbonne Avenue applied this standard to its design and created an active outdoor 
use for the open space. As written, the Code doesn’t provide prescriptive 
standards, instead each project is evaluated on a “case-by-case basis”. Case-by-
case is a subjective criterion and contrary to Streamlined Affordable Housing (SB 
35) and the Housing Crisis Act (SB 330).  The update adds specific values to this 
sightline standard. A clear vision triangle starts at intersection of the property lines 
that are parallel to each street and extends for ten feet in each direction. The third 
triangle leg connects the two ten-foot segments.  The term “clear vision triangle” is 
defined and based on definitions found in the American Planning Association’s 
Dictionary.  There may be situations where conditions, such as the direction of a 
one-way street or alley, make it unnecessary for a clear visibility triangle. If there’s 
a project that would not obstruct sightlines, then the project may apply for a 
modification.  
 

b) The existing standards of development section states that the maximum building 
height and other standards can be deviated from through the conditional use 
permit process.  While the conditional use permit (CUP) process consolidates the 
potential number of entitlements because a CUP is already required for a mixed-
use project, a CUP pertains to special land uses that are not allowed by-right and 
evaluates their operating characteristics, impacts, and consistency with the 
General Plan’s policies.  Also, CUPs can be revoked or terminated.  Deviations 
from objective and quantifiable standards of development require a variance, or if 
specified a modification with a site plan review.  None of the zoning districts use a 
conditional use to deviate from a development standard; therefore, staff has 
removed a sentence from former subparagraph (d) pertaining to the building’s 
height.  
 
It is not necessary to add language in the Mixed-Use Overlay District’s Standards 
of Development that a variance may be obtained in order to deviate from the 
development standards, and subparagraph (l) has been deleted. Lomita Municipal 
Code Article 70 Paragraph 10 (Zone Variance) stipulates that “The Commission, 
or City Council on appeal may grant a Variance from the required development 
standards, with or without conditions…”.  If the City wanted to place a lesser burden 
on deviating from any or all of the development standards, it could make certain 
standards eligible for a modification pursuant to Article 70 Paragraph 8.  

 
The one exception to the variance process is the percentage of nonresidential use 
requirement.  The 6th Cycle HE’s Program 12: Lot Consolidation stated that a 
deviation from the minimum commercial percentage is considered through the 
conditional use permit process. The CUP process does not require finding 
exceptional or extraordinary circumstances, which might create an impediment to 
the project.  As the nonresidential use percentage pertains to the land use, a CUP 
would not be inappropriate. 

 



 5 

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 
 
The zone text amendment is consistent with the Land Use Element’s mixed-use intent.  
The Amendment is also consistent with the Housing Element’s (HE) Policy 2.4 which is 
to ‘promote and encourage innovation and creativity in housing development through 
regulations that increase transparency and flexibility in the development approval 
process’. Removing the lot size requirement in the D-C Zone encourages innovation in 
housing development. It also advances HE’s Program 7: Incentives and Regulations. The 
City is committed to evaluating a range of incentive-based and regulatory approaches to 
facilitate the development of housing for lower-income households.  One specific 
objective is to “Improve development regulations intended to incentivize affordable and 
mixed-income housing development through regulatory inducements such as incentive 
zoning paired with objective development standards, or process incentives such as 
technical assistance in exchange for affordable housing no later than fall 2023.”  This 
ordinance demonstrates both an incentive-based approach to creating affordable housing 
and technical assistance in performing the research, analysis, and creating the standards 
for small-sized mixed-use mixed-income projects.   
 
CEQA 
 
The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. Section 15061(b)(3) states that CEQA 
applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment. The proposed text amendment will not have a significant effect on the 
environment because the proposed amendments would provide for new standards 
consistent with State Law and do not propose any physical construction. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Notices of this hearing dated June 29, 2023, were published in The Daily Breeze 
newspaper, and posted at City Hall and Lomita Park.   
 
OPTIONS 
 

1. Recommend approval to the City Council as recommended by staff. 
2. Recommend approval to the City Council with amendments. 
3. Provide staff with further direction. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Resolution and Exhibit A Draft Ordinance 
2. Lomita Municipal Code Redlined  

 
 
 
 
 



 6 

Prepared by:       Reviewed by:  

     
Laura MacMorran      Brianna Rindge, AICP  
Associate Planner Community and Economic 

Development Director 
  
   



City of Lomita 6th Housing Element Update  |  10

PROGRAM 7: INCENTIVES AND REGULATIONS

The City will evaluate a range of incentive-based and regulatory approaches to facilitate the development 
of housing for lower-income households. This will include updates to local implementation on the State’s 
Density Bonus program, as well as evaluation of floor-area-ratio-based bonuses, bonuses in exchange for 
infrastructure, increased opportunities for expedited permit processing, and increased use of ministerial 
processing for a variety of housing types.

Objective/Timeframe(s)  ‒ To assist in the development of housing for lower income households, 
including extremely low-income households, the city will annually and 
proactively reach out to developers of affordable housing to identify 
development opportunities and assist with development, including 
funding, supporting funding applications, ministerial reviews of 
naturally affordable housing types, easing development standards 
including parking and front setback requirements, fee waivers, reduction 
or deferrals, and incentives and concessions beyond those in State 
Density Bonus law. The City will target 200 units in the planning period 
throughout the City and 30 percent in higher resource or higher income 
areas and 30 percent in lower-income areas. 

 ‒ Amend the Density Bonus ordinance to ensure consistency with State law, 
including the provision of a bonus for student affordable housing, senior 
housing, and 100 percent affordable developments by spring 2023.

 ‒ Improve development regulations intended to incentivize affordable and 
mixed-income housing development through regulatory inducements 
such as incentive zoning paired with objective development standards, or 
process incentives such as technical assistance in exchange for affordable 
housing no later than fall 2023.

 ‒ Annually review regulations to identify opportunities to incentivize and 
reduce barriers to housing production and ensure ongoing consistency 
with State laws.

 ‒ Continue to work with developers through one-on-one consultations, 
especially affordable housing developers, to identify process 
improvements to City procedures. 

Responsible Agency Community Development Department

Funding Sources General

Relevant Policies 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.6

Attachment 4



 1 

 
 

TO:   Planning Commission 
 
FROM:   Whitney Weisberg, Planning Intern 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Conditional Use Permit No. 326 at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway within 

the Commercial Retail (C-R) Zone and Finding the Action to be 
Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Adopt a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No. 326 to allow a new grocery store 
at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway to offer beer, wine, and spirits for offsite consumption and 
to confirm the categorical exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Vee Vargas, on behalf of Grocery Outlet, requests approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 
326 to allow a new grocery store at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway to offer beer, wine, and 
spirits for offsite consumption within the Commercial Retail (C-R) Zone. The grocery store 
applied for a Type 21 ABC license to offer beer, wine, and spirits alongside the sale of 
food and retail items. The City requires a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the sale of 
beer, wine, and spirits. 
 
Existing Conditions 
The subject site is located along Pacific Coast Highway to the east of Narbonne Avenue. 
The total usable area of the property is 76,526 ft2 and consists of one large box store 
building with the loading dock in the rear. The unit is currently vacant, but was formerly 
occupied by Big Lots. Two trash enclosures will be located next to the loading dock in the 
rear of the property and an additional loading zone will be located in the northeast portion 
of the property. The grocery store will be open from open from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 
daily.  The total floor area of the unit is currently 23,040 ft2, but they intend to only occupy 
17,494 ft2, carving out 5,546 ft2 for another tenant. 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No. PH 4b 

CITY OF LOMITA 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 



 2 

ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan 
The land use designation for the property is Commercial. A grocery store that sells beer, 
wine, and spirits for offsite consumption is consistent with this designation. The Land Use 
Element contains a floor area ratio of 1.0 to 1.0. The combined 23,040 ft2 building area is 
on a 77,183 ft2 lot and has a F.A.R. of less than 1.0 which is consistent with the 
specification.  The applicant does not propose any new square footage.  
 
Zoning Review 
The site is zoned C-R (Commercial, Retail) which is established to provide for regional 
retail sale needs and limited-service establishments. Grocery stores selling alcohol are 
allowed as a conditional use per Lomita Municipal Code Sec. 11.48.04(A)(12). 
 
Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Residential Single Family Residential (R-1) 

South Commercial Commercial Retail (C-R) 

West Commercial Commercial Retail (C-R) 

East Commercial Commercial Retail (C-R) 

 
Distance Requirements 
Any business selling alcoholic beverages for offsite or onsite consumption shall be 
located a minimum of 300’ from schools, parks, and public recreation areas per Lomita 
Municipal Code Section 11-1.56.03(C). There are no sensitive uses in the specified 
vicinity of the site. 
 
Any establishment over 2,500 ft2 selling alcohol for offsite consumption must be located 
at least 300 feet from any other establishment authorized to sell alcoholic beverages for 
offsite consumption. The proposed use is located within 300 feet of one business 
authorized to sell alcohol for offsite consumption: Target , on the other side of the highway, 
at 2130 Pacific Coast Highway. 
 
Section 11-1-56.03(D) of the Lomita Municipal Code states that the Planning Commission 
may modify the distance requirements when granting a conditional use permit if the 
following additional findings can be made. This section enables the City to scrutinize the 
impacts of new alcohol use or modification on existing sensitive uses. Staff reviewed the 
project in accordance with Section 11-1.56.03 and advises that the project is consistent 
with the required findings (see Exhibit A). 
 
Existing License within Census Tract 
With regard to offsite license concentration, the ABC investigator reports that there exist 
4 active retail licenses for offsite consumption with the Department of Alcohol Beverage 
Control (ABC), while ABC authorizes three in this tract. However, ABC will permit 
additional liquor licenses subject to an approved conditional use permit and letter of 



 3 

convenience or necessity from the City Council. Staff proposes a condition of approval 
that the applicant obtains a letter of public convenience or necessity, with the approval of 
the conditional use permit. 
 

Name City Address 

Type 20 (beer & wine only): 

7 Eleven Lomita 2301 PCH 

KB Food Marts Plus Lomita 2380 Lomita Blvd 

Type 21 (beer, wine, & liquor – same type as applicant): 

Rolling Hills Market Lomita 2413 PCH, Ste 105 

Ace Hi Liquor Lomita 25511 Narbonne Ave 

 
The city of Torrance benefits from alcohol sales at several chain grocery stores, such as 
Vons, Whole Foods, and Sam’s Club.  The sales of alcohol at the proposed Grocery Outlet 
will shift benefit into Lomita. 
 
Conditional Use Permit Findings Summary 
Staff reviewed the project in accordance with Section 11-1.70.09 of the Lomita Municipal 
Code and advises that the project is consistent with the required findings (see Exhibit A). 
The City has not received any complaints about this establishment. Planning staff 
recommends approval for Conditional Use Permit No. 326. 
 
CEQA 
 
The Planning Commission finds, determines and declares that adoption of this resolution 
and approval of the CUP is statutorily exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) 
because the actions identified in the ordinance are limited to the permitting and minor 
alteration of existing facilities. The project consists of permitting a license to sell beer, 
wine, and spirits for offsite consumption, which is a negligible expansion of the proposed 
onsite activities. Alternatively, the adoption of this resolution and approval of the CUP is 
exempt from CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment. (State CEQA 
Guidelines, § 15061(b)(3).) 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
On August 1, 2023, staff mailed notices of this hearing to property owners within 300’ of 
the subject property and posted on the Lomita City web page, at Lomita City Hall, and at 
Lomita Park. 
 
  



 4 

OPTIONS 
 
1. Approve the attached resolution as recommended. 
2. Approve the attached resolution with amended conditions. 
3. Deny the application. 
4. Provide staff with further direction. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Draft Resolution of CUP No. 326 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Zoning Map 
4. General Plan Map  
5. Aerial Photograph 
6. Notice of Exemption 
7. Floor Plan 
 
 
Recommended by: Prepared by: 
 

__________________      
Brianna Rindge, AICP Whitney Weisberg  
Community & Economic Development Director Planning Intern 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. PC 2023-XX 

 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 326 
2155 PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY  

APN: 7375-025-041 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LOMITA 
APPROVING A REQUEST FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 326 TO ALLOW A 
NEW GROCERY STORE AT 2155 PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY TO SELL BEER, WINE, 
AND SPIRITS FOR OFFSITE CONSUMPTION WITHIN THE COMMERICAL RETAIL (C-
R) ZONE. FILED BY VEE VARGAS ON BEHALF OF GROCERY OUTLET AT 5650 
HOLLIS STREET, EMERYVILLE, CALIFORNIA, 94608 (APPLICANT). 
 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LOMITA DOES HEREBY FIND, 
ORDER, AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals 
 
A. The City of Lomita received an application to allow a new grocery store at 2155 Pacific 

Coast Highway to sell beer, wine, and spirits for offsite consumption pursuant to a 
proposed Type 21 Department of Alcoholic Beverage and Control (ABC) license. Filed 
by Vee Vargas, Grocery Outlet at 5650 Hollis Street, Emeryville, California 94608 
(Applicant). 

B. On August 14, 2023, the Planning Commission of the City of Lomita held a duly 
noticed public hearing and accepted public testimony for an application.  

C. The Planning Commission finds that the Applicants agree with the necessity of and 
accept all elements, requirements, and conditions of this resolution as being a 
reasonable manner of preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering, the health, 
safety, and welfare of citizens in general including those who access the site. 

Section 2. Conditional Use Permit Findings 
 
The amendment to the existing Conditional Use Permit is subject to the Conditional Use 
Permit findings contained in Lomita Municipal Code Section 11-1.70.09 (Conditional Use 
Permit).  The required findings below are shown in italicized type and the reason(s) the 
project is consistent is shown in regular type. Planning Commission finds, after due study 
and deliberation, that the following circumstances exist: 
 

(1) The proposed use is allowed within the district with the approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit and complies with all other applicable requirements of Article 70 
(Zoning Ordinance) of the Lomita Municipal Code. 

 
Subject to the requirements of Article 56 (Sale of Alcoholic Beverages), grocery 
stores selling alcoholic beverages are permitted in the C-R zone with the approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit (Section 11-1.48.04(A)(12)). 



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 2  

 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan. 
 

The General Plan land use designation for the subject property is commercial. This 
designation provides for commercial uses, such as office, retail, and service. A 
grocery store provides goods and services and is considered a retail commercial 
use, which is consistent with the designation. 

 
(3) The site and building’s design, location and size are compatible with existing and 

future land uses, building and structures in the vicinity and the proposed use will 
not jeopardize, adversely affect, endanger, or otherwise constitute a menace to 
the public health, safety, or general welfare or be materially detrimental to the 
property of other persons located in the vicinity.  

 
The proposed sale of beer, wine, and spirits for offsite consumption as part of the 
retail business will not adversely affect the public welfare nor the property of other 
persons. The subject’s shopping center and unit at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway 
are orientated towards Pacific Coast Highway. The use will not expand beyond the 
existing structure. Adding beer, wine, and spirit sales to a food market for offsite 
consumption will not adversely affect the public welfare or be detrimental to 
businesses and properties in the vicinity. The adjacent neighbors are commercial 
and alcohol sales are in keeping with the surrounding uses. The grocery store 
proposes to sell beer, wine, and spirits during its operating hours, from 6:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 p.m. every day. This aligns with other neighboring establishments. The 
properties in the vicinity sell alcohol for offsite consumption during the following 
hours: 
 

Address Business Approved Hours of 
Operation 

2130 Pacific Coast 
Highway 

Target in progress of 
acquiring ABC 
License 

7 A.M. to 12 A.M. (Per 
CUP 307) 

25808 Narbonne Avenue Hanukah Inc. 
associated with 
Pacific Shell Gas 
Station 

6 A.M. to 11 P.M. 

 
The proposed beer, wine, and spirits sales hours coincide with typical grocery 
shopping hours and other established businesses in the vicinity.  

 
Several conditions of approval intend to ensure that operations are consistent with 
the grocery store use, protects the general welfare of employees and customers, 
and maintains the look and feel of a grocery store. 

 

(4) The site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the yards, walls, fences, 
parking and loading facilities, landscaping and other development features 
prescribed in this chapter, or as required as a condition in order to integrate the 



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 3  

 

use with the uses in the neighborhood. 
 

The site was developed in 1969 and the project does not require physical changes 
to the site layout related to buildings and parking. The subject shopping center 
meets the minimum requirement under Lomita Municipal Code. The grocery store 
is similar to the former established use and will not intensify the demand for 
parking.  

 
(5) The site is served by highways and streets adequate to carry the kind and quantity 

of traffic such use would generate. 
 

The site is served by Pacific Coast Highway, a six-lane state highway, and 
Narbonne Avenue, a four-lane roadway, both major corridors within Lomita. Selling 
beer and wine for offsite consumption at a new food market will intensify use, but 
these streets can adequately carry the kind and quantity of traffic the proposed use 
may generate. 

 
Section 3. Distance Requirement Findings 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-1-56.03(D) of the Lomita Municipal Code, because the applicant’s 
business is within 300 feet of another retailer selling alcohol for offsite consumption, the 
Planning Commission may modify the distance requirements when granting a conditional 
use permit if the following additional findings can be made: 
 

1) The proposed use will not have an adverse impact on public safety.  Factors that 
could be considered to determine impact include but are not limited to Los Angeles 
County Sheriff Department’s crime statistics for the underlying and surrounding 
reporting districts, Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department’s crime statistics for 
the underlying and surrounding properties, and the types of crime within those 
same areas. 

 
There are no sensitive uses within the area that could potentially be disrupted. 
There is one business located within 300 feet of the subject unit that is authorized 
to sell alcohol for offsite consumption, but they are across Pacific Coast Highway, 
limiting the potential disturbance. Correspondence with the Los Angeles County 
Sheriff’s Department revealed that there was one call for service to 2155 Pacific 
Coast Highway during the 2022 calendar year.  

 
2) The business will provide beneficial commercial vitality to the area. 

 
The business will provide beneficial commercial vitality to the area because the 
ancillary sale of beer, wine, and spirits at a grocery store will enhance business 
while creating minimal impacts on the community. The ancillary sale of alcohol will 
provide an additional commercial sales opportunity to the area. This request is 
consistent with the purpose and intent of the Lomita Municipal Code to control the 
proliferation of businesses engaging in the sale of alcoholic beverages and to 



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 4  

 

preserve community appearance, safeguard and enhance property values, and 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Lomita. 

 
3) The use will not be objectionable or detrimental to surrounding properties and the 

neighborhood. 
 

Similar retailers such as Big Lots have operated at this location for over 50 years 
and the proposed grocery store will not cause any objectionable effects on the 
surrounding properties. Currently, there is a six-foot block wall that separates the 
building from the residential units behind the site across the entirety of the 
boundary. The entrance to the grocery store will be on the opposite side of the 
residential uses, and along Pacific Coast Highway, a major corridor. 

 
Section 4. CEQA Findings. 

The Planning Commission finds, determines and declares that adoption of this resolution 
and approval of the CUP is statutorily exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) 
because the actions identified in the ordinance are limited to the permitting and minor 
alteration of existing facilities. The project consists of permitting a license to sell beer, 
wine, and spirits for offsite consumption, which is a negligible expansion of the proposed 
onsite activities. Alternatively, the adoption of this resolution and approval of the CUP is 
exempt from CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment. (State CEQA 
Guidelines, § 15061(b)(3).) 

Section 5. Based on the above findings, the Planning Commission of the City of Lomita 
hereby approves Conditional Use Permit No. 326 subject to the following conditions: 
 
GENERAL PROJECT CONDITIONS 
 

1. The project shall conform to the plans, except as otherwise specified in these 
conditions, or unless a minor modification to the plans is approved by the 
Community and Economic Development Director or a major modification to the 
plans is approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
2. This permit is granted for the Applicant’s application received on June 26, 2023 on 

file with the Planning Division, and may not be transferred from one property to 
another. 

 
3. By commencing any activity related to the project or using any structure authorized 

by this permit, Applicant accepts all the conditions and obligations imposed by this 
permit and waives any challenge to the validity of the conditions and obligations 
stated therein. 

 
4. This permit shall not be effective for any purpose until a duly authorized 

representative of the owner of the property has filed with the Department of 



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 5  

 

Community Development, a notarized affidavit accepting all the conditions of this 
permit.  This affidavit, or a copy of this resolution, shall be recorded with the County 
Recorder and is binding on successors. If the Applicant is a corporation, then an 
officer of the corporation shall sign the acceptance affidavit. 

 
5. This permit shall automatically be null and void two years from the date of issuance 

unless a business license has been issued by the City of Lomita. A request for a 
one-year extension may be considered by the Planning Commission. No extension 
shall be considered unless requested prior to the expiration date. 

 
6. In the event of a disagreement in the interpretation and/or application of these 

conditions, the issue shall be referred back to the Planning Commission. 
 
7. It is hereby declared to be the intent that if any provision of this permit is held or 

declared invalid, the permit shall be void and the privileges granted hereunder shall 
lapse. 

 
8. All outstanding fees owed to the City, including staff time spent processing this 

application, shall be paid in full. 
 

PLANNING CONDITIONS 
 

9. All crimes occurring inside or outside the project property shall be reported to the 
Lomita Station of the Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department at the time of the 
occurrence. 
 

10. The business may operate from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. every day of the week. 
 

11. This approval is contingent upon the approval of a letter of public convenience or 
necessity from the City Council. 
 

12. This approval is for the sale of beer, wine, and spirits as an ancillary use to a food 
market for the property located at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway. 
 

13. Applicant must ensure that no loitering takes place within the parking lot area. 
 

14. There shall be no advertising of alcoholic beverages visible from the outside of the 
establishment including advertising directed to the exterior from within, promoting 
or indicating availability of alcoholic beverages. 
 

15. Any graffiti painted or marked upon the premises or any adjacent area under 
control of the licensee shall be removed or painted over within forty-eight hours of 
notification.  

 
16. The licensee shall be responsible for maintaining the area adjacent to the premises 

over which they have control free of litter. 



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 6  

 

17. The parking lot of the premises shall be equipped with lighting of sufficient power 
to illuminate and make discernable the appearance and conduct of all persons on 
or about the parking lot. Lights may not be installed in a manner that will disrupt 
nearby residences. 
 

18. Licensee shall regularly monitor the area to under Licensee’s control in an effort to 
prevent loitering of persons about the premises. 
 

19. No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed on any portion of the premises or any 
portion which is adjacent thereto and under the control of the licensee. 
 

20. The sale of beer, wine, and spirits is only authorized as an ancillary service to food 
sales and other retail items sold for the food market. In the event that food sales 
and the sale of retail items ceases on the property, the conditional use permit for 
the sale of beer, wine, and spirits for offsite consumption shall be void and the 
privileges granted hereunder shall lapse. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Applicant agrees, as a condition of adoption of this resolution, at Applicant’s own 
expense, to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its agents, officers and 
employees from and against any claim, action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, 
void or annul the approval of the resolution or any condition attached thereto or any 
proceedings, acts or determinations taken, done or made prior to the approval of such 
resolution that were part of the approval process. Applicant’s commencement of 
construction or operations pursuant to the resolution shall be deemed to be an 
acceptance of all conditions thereof. 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 
If Applicant, owner, or tenant fails to comply with any of the conditions of this permit, the 
Applicant, owner or tenant shall be subject to a civil fine pursuant to the City of Lomita 
Municipal Code. 
 
If any of the conditions of the Conditional Use Permit are not complied with or upon notice 
of a violation by the Code Enforcement Division, the Planning Commission, after written 
notice to the applicant and a noticed public hearing, may in addition to revoking the permit, 
amend, delete, or add conditions to this permit at a subsequent public hearing. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lomita on this 14th 
day of August 2023 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES:        Commissioners:    
NOES:       Commissioners:   



Resolution No. 2023-XX 

Page 7  

 

ABSENT:   Commissioners:   
RECUSE:  Commissioners:   

 
 
       Steven Cammarata, Chairperson 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                          
       Brianna Rindge, AICP 
      Community and Economic Development Director  
 
 
Within 30 days of the date of this decision for an exception, permit, change of zone, or 
other approval, or by the person the revocation of whose permit, exception, change of 
zone, or other approval is under consideration, of notice of the action of, or failure to act 
by, the Commission, any person dissatisfied with the action of, or the failure to act by, the 
Commission may file with the City Clerk an appeal from such action upon depositing with 
said Clerk an amount specified by resolution of the City Council. 
 
Any action to challenge the final decision of the City made as a result of the public hearing 
on this application must be filed within the time limits set forth in Code of Civil Procedure 
Section 1094.6. 
 
 
 











NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

Project Title:  Conditional Use Permit No. 326 

Project Description: A request for Conditional Use Permit No. 326 for sales of wine, beer, and spirits for 

offsite consumption at 2155 Pacific Coast Highway in the Commercial Retail (C-R) Zone 

Finding: 

The Planning Division of the Community Development Department of the City of Lomita has reviewed the 

proposed project and found it to be exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA). 

Ministerial Project 

Categorical Exemption (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15301(a) (Existing Facilities) & Section 15332 

(In-Fill Development)) 

Statutory Exemption 

Emergency Project 

Quick Disapproval [CEQA Guidelines, Section 15270] 

No Possibility of Significant Effect [CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3)] 

Supporting Reasons:  In accordance Pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the CEQA 

guidelines, a project that consists of permitting or licensing involving negligible expansion of use may be 

found to be exempt from the requirements of CEQA. In addition, Section 15332 (In-Fill Development) 

exempts a project that is consistent with the general plan and zoning designation, is on an urban site less 

than five acres, is not a special habitat, does not create significant traffic, noise, air quality or water quality 

issues, and is adequately served by all utilities and public services.  The proposed minor conditional use 

permit for shared parking is a permitting activity and intensification of an existing restaurant use meets the 

criteria for an infill development. Therefore, the Planning Commission has determined that there is no 

substantial evidence that the project may have a significant effect on the environment. 

Date Brianna Rindge 

Community & Economic Development 

Director 

Community Development Department 

Planning Division 

24300 Narbonne Avenue 

Lomita, CA 90717 

310/325-7110 

FAX 310/325-4024 

Attachment 6



-, 3 ,-

.�· 

(_A 

,-. I I

i 

l.: 

�NORTH 

(Z) 
I 

i 

,,.--" ... ,,. ..
�, ........... � 

MfATCOOLHl 
r� 

111SF 

FLOOR AREAS (TOTAL NEH 
F.O.H. = 11.613 SF 

8.0.H. = 5.026 SF 
1N:: . ..1. 0E'S S. P?i)R.- ( XES • 

Beer, Wine & Spirits 

LENGTH AREA 

"L" 

-{ LF �i S:F 
1..i L:" • J sr 

TOTALS: 81 LF 197 SF 

:"�l.1 SF ..; A __ J(.!.TE: FL)CqA�EA- !H,'/w 
4 4�n� - ��T ;j-.) T :•TA_ ':"ALCS :-_(; ')R 

7 AH • I Ft.� =R(,'::O$E.:, HO .lti:5 Fi)q 
! AL(<t)� :)l SAt..ES 
.J8':.. LF = r·1-"L LE,,'--� ,Jt= 'SAL�$ �hE�'-.'ING 
·j1!"(::J.. .. l..;1)-;1.,;_':>-li::L\.'lt-.C:ir...AT1rJ ,.J J:J AL

L(\•3.,.H 1..r $,\LE.':' S"El':JN:.;, 

fl'IJlllPL.Al,Ll:.o.,LNlJ 

� t;R.-.:.;ur,.l.{Al•.Hl�:;T..!L'I" 

W'-1.IE""CHC• 

� z3HEt...S1�-JCTL'1ALWALLS 

i::::zzl•Bt:Af't(.,1,HE,<,il¥,,''IU!> 

�Tll·.rt.LH' 
i::::J 111'-'PTIT'N'.'" 
� •fl tJOt.Ec;WAu.S(MliNU") 

• 
J. l!IIIIH" 11-IIH"III•

1-JlltYl-l�l;t--, eat oatW!(llj 

lllal.llllllHIIIIUL 

..... 

GROCERY 

OUTLET 
2155 EPtcliDCNSI 

H...,.l1Wit1.CAH717 

FIXTURE PLAN 

F1-01 
.a a,'"'' .:a. 

Attachment 7



 1 

 
 

TO:   Planning Commission 
 
FROM:   Brianna Rindge, Community & Economic Development Director  
 
MEETING DATE: August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and Consideration of the Planning Commission Bylaws 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Provide specific direction to staff to update the bylaws and return to the Planning 
Commission with a draft resolution accordingly. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On February 9, 2004, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 2004-02 to 
establish rules and procedures for the Lomita Planning Commission. At the June 12, 2023 
Planning Commission meeting, the board requested staff to agendize a review of these 
existing bylaws.  The item was duly noticed and Planning Commission discussed the item 
at the July 10, 2023 meeting, ultimately voting to continue the item to the August 14, 2023 
Planning Commission meeting with the intention of including the full Planning 
Commission in the discussion.  Staff is prepared to return with a resolution amending the 
bylaws in the manner agreed upon by the Planning Commission. 
 
OPTIONS 
 

1. Provide specific direction to staff to update the bylaws and return to Planning 
Commission with a draft resolution accordingly. 

2. Maintain existing Resolution No. 2004-02. 
3. Provide staff with further direction. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Planning Commission Bylaws (Resolution No. 2004-02) 
 
Prepared by: 
 
     
Brianna Rindge, AICP 
Community & Economic Development Director 

Item No. SCH 5a 
 
 

CITY OF LOMITA 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 



City of Lomita 

Planning Commission 

Rules and Procedures 

i.

Attachment 1
















	2023-08-14 PC agenda
	2023-07-10 PC Minutes-draft
	Item PH 4a
	PC Staff Report 8.14 BR
	TO:        Planning Commission
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	Attachment 1 PC Reso_lm
	Attachment 1 Exhibit A Draft Ordinance Mixed Use 2023_final.pdf
	“Sec. 11-1.58.06. Standards of development


	Attachment 2 Letter to Planning Commission - 07-17-2023
	Attachment 3 PC Staff Report 7.10
	Attachment 4 HE Program 7

	Item PH 4b
	Staff Report_CUP 326 BR
	Attachment 1-CUP Reso
	Attachment 2- Vicinity Map
	Attachment 3-Zoning Map
	Attachment 4- General Plan Map
	Attachment 5-Aerial Photograph
	Attachment 6-Notice of Exemption
	Attachment 7-Annotated Floor Plan
	Slide Number 1


	Item SCH 5a
	Bylaws SR
	Attachment 1 Bylaws - Planning Commission Rules and Procedures




